Thank You for Joining Us,
The Webinar Will Begin Shortly
Give Me 5: Teaming Arrangements, Joint
Ventures, and Mentor-Protégé Relationships
While you are waiting please check out the Upcoming Webinars
on www.GiveMe5.com.

Before we begin … just a few notes:
•

During the presentation lines will be muted so only presenters can be heard.

•

While you are listening please also put your phone on mute

•

Do NOT put your phone on hold – please hang up and call back

•

If having trouble viewing the presentation – please close out and log in
using a different browser

•

If your slides are not moving please refresh or log out & then log back in

•

If you have any questions during the presentation, please feel free to enter
them into the discussion box on the bottom left of your screen
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Women Impacting Public Policy (WIPP) is a nonprofit, membership
organization working to increase the economic power and public policy clout
of women entrepreneurs by providing essential business skills education,
leadership opportunities for business and personal growth, and a seat at the
table among policymakers in Washington, D.C.
WIPP was founded in 2001 and is recognized as a national, nonpartisan
voice for women business owners, advocating on behalf of its coalition of 78
business organizations. WIPP identifies important trends and opportunities
and provides a collaborative model for the public and private sectors to
advance the economic empowerment of women.

www.WIPP.org

Give Me 5
• National program from WIPP & American Express OPEN designed to
educate women business owners on how to apply for and secure federal
procurement opportunities.
• Give Me 5 works to increase the representation of Women Business
Owners that win government contracts. We provide accessible business
education tools to assist both new and experienced federal contractors.
• Women Business Owners could gain more than $4 billion in annual
revenues if the 5% contracting goal set by Congress was reached.

Your Voice - Be heard!

www.wedecide2016.org
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Teaming and JVs: A Primer
Teaming v. Joint Ventures
 Joint Venturing: Two or more separate companies
to come together to compete as a newly formed
entity
 Teaming: A special type of prime/subcontractor
relationship
 Mentor Protégé?
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Why Team or JV?:
The Rise of Non-Price Evaluation Factors
What you Need to Know:
 Procurement Methods:
• FAR Part 14 – Sealed Bidding Invitation for Bids
(“IFB”): Award is Made to the Lowest Responsive
and Responsible Bidder
• FAR Part 15 – Contracting by Negotiation Request
for Proposals (“RFP”): Award is made to the
offeror who presents the “Best Value”
*Increased Importance on Non-Price Factors*
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Why Team or JV?:
The Rise of Non-Price Evaluation Factors
Typical Evaluation Factors:










Past Performance
Experience w/ Similar Work
Proposed Technical Approach/Solutions
Management Organization
Proposed Schedule
Past Technical Experience/Expertise
Key Personnel Qualifications
Small Business Subcontracting Plan
Price (but remember, it’s not Sealed Bidding)
These issues have made large business experience much more valuable
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Why Team or JV?:
The Rise of Set-Aside Contracts
Meanwhile…
 Federal procurement market as become more
competitive
 An increasing number of contracts are setaside contracts
These issues have made small-business eligibility much more valuable
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The Questions
A Small Business Might be Wondering…
 How can I compete with regard to these non-price
factors?
 How do I get into Federal Contracting if I have not
done Federal work before?
 How do I, as a “small” business, get “big” (i.e. high
dollar, high complexity) contract experience?

Meanwhile, Large Businesses are Wondering…
 How do I, as a “large” business concern, take
advantage of the increasing number of “small”
business program set-aside contracts?
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The Answer
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Benefits of Teaming


Merge Skills and Assets



Leverage Capabilities to Provide Client with Best Value



Strengthen Important Evaluation Factors or “Discriminators”
(Large Concern Helps Small Business) to Maximize “Best Value”
•
•
•
•
•



Technical Expertise
Past Performance
Experience
Customer Knowledge
Cost Performance

Small Business Contracting Advantages (Small Business Helps
Large Concern)
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What Type of Arrangement is
Right for You?
Key Considerations:
 What are your company’s goals?
 What are your company’s strengths and weaknesses?
• Is the company capable of functioning as a Prime?
• Would you be more competitive with a teammate or a joint
venture partner? (Large Businesses often have the Technical
Expertise, Experience, and Key Personnel that Source Selection
teams are looking for…but does it count? Solicitation-specific)
 What are the requirements of this solicitation?
 What’s the relationship between the parties?
 What’s the endgame?
 What effect will teaming/joint venturing have on small
business status?
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Teaming:
Types of Teams


Small Business Prime Contractor, Large Subcontractor: All of the
small business programs provide certain types of small
businesses an advantage over the competition. As a result,
Large Businesses like to team with Small Businesses so that
they can reap the benefits of these “Small Business Contracting
Advantages.” In most situations, then, small companies will
team with large concerns.



But it does not have to be that way. In the alternative, a small
business could team with another type of small business to
combine capabilities, or take advantage of that business’
eligibility pursuant to another small business program.
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Teaming:
Critical Considerations
What Can Go Wrong?
 Destroying “Small” Size Status or Otherwise
Nullifying Small Business Program Eligibility
 How? Two common ways:
1. “Affiliation”
2. Work Percentage Requirements
Draft your Teaming Agreement to Address and Overcome these Concerns!
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Teaming: Affiliation
Why Does Affiliation Affect Size?
Common Affiliation Issues:



Ostensible Subcontractor
• % of Work Requirements
• Control on site
General affiliation:
• Shared Space, Employees,
Resources, Equipment
• Past Employee Relationship
• Familial Relationship
• Frequent Subcontracting
• Financial Reliance/Control
• Guarantor? LOC? Bonding?
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Teaming: Affiliation
How to Combat “Affiliation:”
 Teaming partners can avoid “affiliation”
determination by entering into arms-length
transaction.
(Note: Joint Ventures are presumed to be affiliated with each
other, with certain exceptions…more on this later)
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
 Regulations are Very Specific about the
Percentages of Work the Prime Contractor
Must Self Perform
 These regulations were just updated as of
June 30 per SBA final rule
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
13 CFR 125.6 (a) General. In order to be awarded a full or partial small
business set-aside contract with a value greater than $150,000, an 8(a)
contract, an SDVO SBC contract, a HUBZone contract, a WOSB or
EDWOSB contract pursuant to part 127 of this chapter, with a value
greater than $150,000, a small business concern must agree that:
• In the case of a contract for services (except construction), it will not
pay more than 50% of the amount paid by the government to it to
firms that are not similarly situated. Any work that a similarly
situated subcontractor further subcontracts will count towards the
50% subcontract amount that cannot be exceeded.
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
• In the case of a contract for supplies or products (other than from a
nonmanufacturer of such supplies), it will not pay more than 50% of
the amount paid by the government to it to firms that are not
similarly situated. Any work that a similarly situated subcontractor
further subcontracts will count towards the 50% subcontract amount
that cannot be exceeded. Cost of materials are excluded and not
considered to be subcontracted.
What about non nonmanufacturers?

22

Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
• In the case of a contract for general construction, it will not pay more
than 85% of the amount paid by the government to it to firms that
are not similarly situated. Any work that a similarly situated
subcontractor further subcontracts will count towards the 85%
subcontract amount that cannot be exceeded. Cost of materials are
excluded and not considered to be subcontracted.
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
• In the case of a contract for special trade contractors, no more than
75% of the amount paid by the government to the prime may be paid
to firms that are not similarly situated. Any work that a similarly
situated subcontractor further subcontracts will count towards the
75% subcontract amount that cannot be exceeded. Cost of materials
are excluded and not considered to be subcontracted.
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
Subcontracts to “similarly situated entities.”
What IS a “similarly situated entity” ?

• The NDAA defined a similarly situated entity as “a small business
subcontractor that is a participant of the same small business
program that the prime contractor is a certified participant and which
qualifies the prime contractor to receive the award.” In other words,
a HUBZone could subcontract to another HUBZone, or an 8(a) could
subcontract to another 8(a), without counting those subcontracts
towards the applicable limit.
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
Subcontracts to “similarly situated entities.”
What IS a “similarly situated entity” ?
• In its 2014 proposed rule, the SBA proposed that a subcontractor had to be “small”
for purposes of the NAICS code assigned to the prime contract in order to fall
within the definition of “similarly situated entity.”
• In the final rule, however, the SBA has departed from that idea; under the new
regulation, a subcontractor may qualify as a “similarly situated entity” so long as it
is “small” under the NAICS code assigned to the subcontract, regardless of
whether the subcontractor is “small” for purposes of the prime contract’s NAICS
code. Because prime contractors – and not the government – are responsible for
assigning NAICS codes to their own subcontracts, this provides a lot more flexibility.
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
Subcontracts to “similarly situated entities.”
• A small business concern prime contractor that receives a contract listed in
paragraph (a) of this section and spends contract amounts on a
subcontractor that is a similarly situated entity shall not consider those
subcontracted amounts as subcontracted for purposes of determining
whether the small business concern prime contractor has violated
paragraph (a) of this section, to the extent the subcontractor performs the
work with its own employees.
• Any work that the similarly situated subcontractor does not perform with its
own employees shall be considered subcontracted.
• SBA will also exclude a subcontract to a similarly situated entity from
consideration under the ostensible subcontractor
rule (121.103(h)(4)).
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Teaming:
Self Performance Requirements
How to Combat Potential Problems with Work
Percentage Requirements:


Prime Contractor and Subcontractor roles are generally
defined in teaming agreement provisions



Make sure Prime Contractor scope of work is
appropriately, and very specifically, defined



Explicitly state percentage of work (be sure to use the
right calculation) to be performed by each party in
teaming agreement provisions - Also describe in
narrative form the type of work
28

Teaming Agreements:
Essential Provisions











Relationship of the Parties (Roles and Responsibilities)
Exclusivity
Awarding a Subcontract/Flow Down Provisions
Communications with Client
Protection of Proprietary Information/Non-Disclosure
Agreements
Term and Termination
Governing Law
Limitation of Liability
Disputes and Resolution Process
Non Solicitation of Employees
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Teaming Agreements:
Enforceability
Cyberlock Consulting, Inc. v. Info. Experts, Inc. (E.D.Va 2013) is
instructive:
 The Court held that a teaming agreement expressing that the parties
would negotiate a subcontract in the future was just an “agreement to
agree” and thus unenforceable
 In Cyberlock, subcontractor on contract with U.S. Office of Personnel
Management (“OPM”) could not require prime, its teaming partner, to
award a subcontract providing Cyberlock 49 percent of the work
 The Cyberlock decision confirms government contractors cannot rely on
generic teaming agreements promising work under a future subcontract.
 Instead they need to negotiate more definite subcontract terms and
conditions that will result in a prime contract award
 Another potential solution? Attach a draft subcontract to the
Teaming Agreement as an attachment
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Joint Ventures:
A Primer
A new entity; the JV partners function as something like “coprimes” on the project
Types of Joint Ventures:
 Partnership – referred to by SBA as “informal” joint
venture
 Limited Liability Company
 Corporation
* *Joint Ventures should be formed before submitting offer
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Joint Ventures:
Advantages and Disadvantages
Advantages/Disadvantages Compared to Teaming:

 Revenue is attributed to the partners in proportion to
their ownership interests in the JV
 Issues of Control (Advantage v. Disadvantage)
 Liability
 Termination can be complicated – know who you are
getting involved with
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Joint Ventures:
Affiliation
13 CFR 121.103(h)
 General Rule: Joint Ventures are presumed to be affiliated with
each other
 Situations where size of each concern does not have to be
aggregated for purposes of size determination:
 When the procurement is bundled or consolidated
 (New!) Each JV partner individually meets the applicable size
standard, regardless of combined size of the JV partners
 Mentor/Protégé relationship
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WOSB/EDWOSB Joint Ventures
13 CFR 127.506 - May a Joint Venture Submit an offer on an EDWOSB
or WOSB Requirement?










Size of concerns. A joint venture of at least one WOSB or EDWOSB and one or
more other business concerns may submit an offer as a small business for a
competitive WOSB or EDWOSB procurement so long as each concern is small
under the size standard corresponding to the NAICS code assigned to the
procurement
The EDWOSB or WOSB participant of the joint venture must be designated in
SAM (or any successor system)as an EDWOSB or WOSB
The parties to the joint venture must enter into a written joint venture
agreement
The joint venture must perform the applicable percentage of work
The procuring activity will execute the contract in the name of the
EDWOSB or WOSB or joint venture
The WOSB or EDWOSB must provide a copy of the joint venture
agreement to the contracting officer
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WOSB/EDWOSB Joint Ventures
13 CFR 127.506 - May a Joint Venture Submit an offer on an EDWOSB
or WOSB Requirement?


Written JV Agreement Must Contain:

(1) Setting forth the purpose of the joint venture.
(2) Designating an EDWOSB or WOSB as the managing venturer of the joint venture, and an
employee of the managing venturer as the project manager responsible for the performance
of the contract;
(3) Stating that not less than 51 percent of the net profits earned by the joint venture will be
distributed to the EDWOSB or WOSB;
(4) Specifying the responsibilities of the parties with regard to contract performance, sources
of labor, and negotiation of the EDWOSB or WOSB contract; and
(5) Requiring the final original records be retained by the managing venturer upon completion
of the EDWOSB or WOSB contract performed by the joint venture.
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Joint Ventures:
JV Agreement - Critical Considerations



SBA/VA JV Requirements
Management Structure
• Which party will be responsible for negotiating
contracts and subcontracts? Communicating with
the customer?
 Division of labor?
• Who is doing what? Does it comply with
performance requirements?
 Populated or unpopulated?
• Unpopulated – Employees of JV members
• Populated – JV has its own employees (less common)
36

Mentor Protégé Programs:
A Primer
Programs:
 SBA – 8(a) only (for now…) 13 C.F.R. 124.520
 Agency-specific Mentor-Protégé programs
General Rules:
 Protégé is the small (8(a)) concern / Mentor is large
 Mentor may have more than one protégé; protégés may
not have more than one mentor (except SBA program
where protégé may have a second mentor if a different
business line). 13 CFR 124.520 (b)(2); 13 CFR
124.520 (c)(3)
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Benefits
Under SBA’s Mentor-Protégé program, protégés can gain the following
benefits:
 Technical and management assistance – The mentor’s expertise,
resources, and capabilities are made available to the protégé
 Prime contracting – Mentors can enter into joint-venture arrangements
with protégés to compete for government contracts - Broad exclusion
from affiliation
 Financial assistance in the form of equity or loans – Mentors can own
equity interest of up to 40% in a protégé firm to help it raise capital (13
CFR 124.504 (d)(2))
 Qualification for other SBA programs - A protégé can obtain other forms
of SBA assistance as the result of its good standing in the MentorProtégé program
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Who is Eligible to be a Mentor?
13 CFR 124.520(b)
 Generally, any concern or non-profit entity that demonstrates a
commitment and the ability to assist developing 8(a) Participants may act
as a mentor.
 In order to qualify as a mentor, a concern must demonstrate that it:
 Possesses favorable financial health;
 Possesses good character;
 Does not appear on the federal list of debarred or suspended contractors;
and
 Can impart value to a protégé firm due to lessons learned and practical
experience gained because of the 8(a) BD program, or through its
knowledge of general business operations and government contracting
 Generally one protégé, no more than three protégés
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Who is Eligible to be a Protégé?
13 CFR 124.520(c)
 In order to initially qualify as a protégé firm, a Participant must:
• Be in the developmental stage of program participation
• Have never received an 8(a) contract, or
• Have a size that is less than half the size standard corresponding
to its primary NAICS code
 Only firms that are in good standing in the 8(a) BD program (e.g.,
firms that do not have termination or suspension proceedings
against them, and are up to date with all reporting requirements)
may qualify as a protégé
 SBA will not approve a mentor/protégé relationship for an 8(a)
Participant with less than six months remaining in its
program term
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Mentor Protégé Agreements
MP firms must enter a written agreement setting forth an
assessment of the protégé's needs and providing a detailed
description and timeline for the delivery of the assistance
the mentor commits to provide to address those needs
(e.g., management and/or technical assistance, loans and/or
equity investments, cooperation on joint venture projects,
or subcontracts under prime contracts being performed by
the mentor)
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Mentor Protégé Agreements
The Mentor/Protégé agreement must:
 Address how the assistance to be provided through the agreement
will help the protégé firm meet the goals established in its SBAapproved business plan
 Establish a single point of contact in the mentor concern who is
responsible for managing and implementing the mentor/protégé
agreement;
 Provide that the mentor will provide such assistance to the protégé
firm for at least one year
 Provide that either the protégé or the mentor may terminate the
agreement with 30 days advance notice to the other party to the
mentor/protégé relationship and to SBA
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Mentor Protégé Agreements
 The written agreement must be submitted to, and evaluated and
approved by SBA
 The agreement will not be approved if:
• SBA determines that the assistance to be provided is not
sufficient to promote any real developmental gains to the
protégé, or
• SBA determines that the agreement is merely a vehicle to
enable the mentor to receive 8(a) contracts
 SBA must approve all changes to a mentor/protégé agreement in
advance
 SBA will review the mentor/protégé relationship annually to
determine whether to approve its continuation for
another year
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8(a) Mentor Protégé Program:
Affiliation?
Size Appeal of Patriot Construction, Inc., SBA No. SIZ-5439
 This case makes it clear that OHA does not consider the mentorprotégé program a free pass
 If you are using the program correctly, it should shield you from a
finding of affiliation based on the ties formed as a part of the
mentor/protégé relationship…but it will not protect you from a
finding of affiliation based on things that would, independently,
constitute an affiliation
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Recent
Developments
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Mentor Protégé Expansion
Universal Mentor Protégé Program?
 February 2015: SBA issues proposed rule, which implements changes
introduced by the Jobs Act of 2010 and the National Defense
Authorization Act of 2013 and would permit firms, other than those
that are 8(a) Certified, to participate in the mentor-protégé program;
all of the companies participating in the revamped program could
take advantage of the exclusion from affiliation
 October 27, 2015: Congressional subcommittee hearing, where SBA
representatives testified that final rule will be issued in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2016, and that the agency hopes to launch a
pilot program sometime in the summer of 2016
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Questions?
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Thank You For Participating
www.wipp.org
For questions, please contact Lin Stuart at
Lstuart@wipp.org

Your Voice - Be heard!

www.wedecide2016.org

•
•
•
•

Get Involved!
Join a policy issue committee and learn how policy can impact your business growth
Make your voice heard - become a member of our national Instant Impact Advocacy
Team
Participate in our educational series – unlimited opportunities for you and your staff
Receive weekly policy updates and briefings

1-888-488-WIPP
www.wipp.org
Questions? Contact WIPP Staff
Program & Education Coordinator: Lin Stuart▪ LStuart@wipp.org ▪ (415) 434-4314
Membership Coordinator: Lynn Bunim ▪ LBunim@wipp.org ▪ (415) 434-4314

Contact Information

Maria L. Panichelli, Esq.
mpanichelli@cohenseglias.com
@MariaPanichelli (twitter)
www.linkedin.com/in/mariapanichelli/
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